HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL AT 3.00 PM

16 October 2018

PRESENT: Councillors David Coppinger (Chairman), Natasha Airey, Hilary Hall, Kevin McDaniel, Mark Sanders, Teresa Salami-Oru and Fiona Slevin-Brown

Officers: Kevin McDaniel, Teresa Salami Oru, Hilary Hall and Nabihah Hassan-Faroog.

PART I

155/15 WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting. The Chair asked all members to introduce themselves.

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Stuart Carroll, Dr William Tong, Dr Jackie McGlynn, Angela Morris, Alison Alexander. It was noted that Fiona Slevin Brown would be a substitute for Dr William Tong.

156/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

157/15 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 17TH JULY 2018

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY; That the minutes of the meeting held on the 17th July 2018 be approved.

158/15 STANDING ITEM: UPDATE ON THE INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM (ICS)

This item was deferred to a future meeting.

159/15 STANDING ITEM: UPDATE ON THE BETTER CARE FUND (BCF)

Hilary Hall, Deputy Director Strategy and Commissioning updated the panel on the progress of the Better Care Fund (BCF). Members were told that there had been a change to the key metrics which showed an upward trend in non-elective admissions. There had been a considerable reduction in end of life non elective admissions across Windsor and Maidenhead and this was due to the collaborative work undertaken across services and partner working. It was reported that there had been a significant increase in non elective admissions for 0-5 year olds.

The Board were updated with details of the WAM GP Network, forward planning, introduction of the paediatric telephone hotline as measures to mitigate the increase in 0-5 non elective admissions. It was noted that the BCF had invested in brokerage services and there had been a reduction in the number of delayed transfers related to social care although the

Health and Wellbeing Board - 16.10.18

delayed transfers related to health continued to rise. The Board were informed that RBWM was on target for re-admissions to hospital (7% national target). Members were informed that there was an increasing complexity of needs for individuals across the borough and that better understanding of needs and appropriate referral making was needed. It was highlighted that there were no placements into care homes (year to date) and that there was a greater steer to support residents in their home. The BCF would end in March 2019 and members were informed that planning guidance would follow in the autumn.

160/15 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA) UPDATE

Teresa Salami Oru gave a presentation on the above titled item. The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) looked at current and future health and social care needs along with wider social factors, this data was then used to inform planning, commissioning of health, wellbeing and care services. Members were told that the JSNA had been developed in partnership and had been led by RBWM Public Health and was supported by a multi-agency task and finish group. It had been intended that there would be a focus on needs and assets and equipping the borough for the future. As part of the proposed structure it was noted that there had been a pan-Berkshire collaboration in the creation of the digital platform. The digital platform would provide real time data by utilising national and local open data sources. The data could be filtered, viewed by geographical region or downloaded. It was highlighted that the platform would be capable of layering several data sets at once and there would be an option to add or link in with local data sets. Members were shown the digital platform demo site and were shown various functions available within the site.

The Board were informed that there had been a JSNA Stakeholder event where over 80% of participants agreed with the priorities already identified. Key themes of the event were prevention, accessibility to services and integration. Participants fed back that there were barriers to JSNA use which included, accessibility, difficult to understand words and rationale. It was suggested that solutions should include awareness, more stakeholder engagement and publicity of services. Analysis of the JSNA so far had shown identified priorities across the life course as mental health, immunisations, prevention, cardiovascular disease, obesity, cancer and health inequalities. The data set also showed that the needs of older people were focussed on immunisations, cancer, falls, age-related macular degeneration; needs of adults (35-59 year olds) were cardio vascular disease, mental health emerging lifestyle challenges, alcohol and inequalities; children needs included immunisations, autism, obesity, accident and emergency 0-4 year olds, self-harm, children living in poverty and low birth weight.

As part of the JSNA emerging data it was highlighted that the key driver for needs identified was unhealthy and risky lifestyles. Other information highlighted to the board included trends, use of outdoors for exercise, inequalities (for e.g. smoking in certain groups), accessibility of services/integration, increases in service demand, opportunities to work with partners to address issues, consideration for prevention at scale (e.g. Make every contact count- MECC). It was noted that the HWB would receive updates in January and April 19 on the progress made to date and that the 2018-2021 JSNA would be signed off by July 2019.

Kevin McDaniel, Director of Children's Services (AFC) queried whether the work surrounding 0-19 year olds with autism and number of referrals could be part of a wider piece of work with MECC. It was noted that collaborative work was needed to gain support and to have a wider understanding of the issues for those who did not meet the needs to be referred onto CAHMS. Councillor Airey suggested that the video clip shown as part of the presentation be shared with local schools. Councillor Airey also stated that it was important to retain data sets for ward areas as the ward boundaries would be changing as a part of the boundary review. It was also queried whether the data would be linked to other services or form part of a data feed for other work streams. It was confirmed that the data would form part of the Service Plan for the Senior Management Team (SMT). It was also noted that aligning the data to the new ward boundaries would be challenging but that some interim work would be done to support Councillors in the run up to the elections. The Director of Public Health was aware

161/15 THE IDENTIFICATION OF SELF FUNDERS AND PLANNING FUTURE DEMAND

Mark Sanders, Healthwatch WAM gave a presentation on the above titled item. It was highlighted that approximately 85% of individuals self-fund care. Members were informed that most individuals did not know what they were entitled to receive and have had no formal contact with Adult Social Care, CVS organisations or domiciliary care agencies. It was noted that most of these individuals had at some point come into contact with health care services or providers. As part of the piece of work carried out by Healthwatch WAM it was highlighted that the service had been in operation since 2012 however awareness in the borough had remained low and there had been a limited number of existing community contacts passed on by providers. The Board were told that it was important to identify and record future predicted use of care homes, providing supportive services and this in turn would reduce social isolation and support carers to care for people in their homes for longer periods of time. There had been some issues with unregistered providers charging a disproportionate amount for "care related" services which had resulted in non affordable tariffs being charged and no signposting of action that could be taken.

It had been estimated that the total cost of unpaid care by the nation was worth an estimated £132bn per year which amounts to more than total NHS spending. At the end of the presentation, Members were asked how self-funding individuals and carers could be recorded and helped to gain access to relevant services across the borough. Councillor Airey suggested that there should a blacklist of agencies who have been known to take advantage of vulnerable users and self-funders and that a log of registered providers should be provided on the RBWM website. It was also suggested that an article be provided for the borough newsletter to highlight things to look out for when choosing a provider of care services. Kevin McDaniel suggested that previous work from the LCSB- Football authority's crackdown of abuse of young persons in football be looked at and the questions that were created as a part of that work which included information on signposting and services available. Fiona Slevin Brown highlighted that simply logging the providers was not a permanent solution and that feedback was needed to discuss the matter further. Hilary Hall suggested that this would be best looked at with smaller pieces of work, such as communications campaigns on social media, NHS partnership work, training for frontline practitioners

A member of the public asked whether there was a single place where individuals could access information from. It was confirmed that at present information existed in different places on the local authority and CCG related websites and that work was taking place to ensure clear connections to different websites for relevant information on services. Councillor Coppinger highlighted that there had been close partnership working with HWB chairs and that this had been an item of discussion at the joint meeting of HWB Chairs. A member of the public queried whether having all information online was the easiest access point for information and whether a telephone access point could be considered.

ACTION- Hilary Hall and Fiona Slevin Brown to consider recommendations for common access points of information for self-funders and carers.

Teresa Salami Oru highlighted that asset mapping had been undertaken at the recent JSNA event and that information would be shared with and uploaded along with data from the stakeholder event. It was noted that the Healthy Ageing Lead had put together a pack of information and this was something that could also be shared to the wider network and residents in due course.

ACTION- Add this item as a progress update for the next meeting. Fiona Slevin Brown, Hilary Hall and Teresa Salami Oru to present.

Jo Greengrass, Assistant Director Nursing and Jo Jeffries, Consultant in Public Health gave a presentation on the above titled item. The Board were informed that the best way to prevent seasonal flu was to be vaccinated each year if you are identified as being in a "at risk" group. It was highlighted that all children aged 2-3 years old on 31st August 2018, all children in reception class and school years 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, people ages six months to under 65 years and in clinical risk groups, all pregnant women, people aged 65 or over, individuals living in long stay residential care homes or other long stay care facilities, carers and household contacts of immunocompromised people would need a flu vaccine. It was also highlighted that health and social care staff who were directly employed by a registered residential care or nursing home or registered domiciliary care provider or those who were directly involved in the care of vulnerable patients/clients and hospice workers were also recommended for a flu vaccine. Information regarding prevention of flu was vital as the period of flu was upcoming December and would last for around 8-10 weeks. Messaging surrounding personal hygiene, respiratory checks and prevention of spreading of germs was also very important.

Members of the Board were informed that the CCG would be hosting two "cover it live" sessions and that over the winter period there would be further communications on the radio, social media and local groups. It was noted that Dr Adrian Hayter had recently spoken on BBC Berkshire to highlight the importance of flu vaccinations. Members were told that the South Asian community would also be targeted with messaging and that a feature would appear on Asian Star radio. Monthly meetings with all involved stakeholders had taken place to review flu planning for the locality and this was a forum where ideas could be shared and where challenges could be discussed. As part of the recommendations from this group, a flu song had been produced and was available on YouTube and had also been shared by Frimley Health. It was noted that the target for frontline health staff to be vaccinated was 75%.

The Board were told that the Flu Activity and national report were now available and that localised hotspot reporting was available online. It was highlighted that there had been a wide range of responses received as part of the Berkshire East Flu Survey and various attitude trends had been analysed. It was reiterated that conversations around flu vaccinations and prevention of spread were needed and that it was a responsibility for all to partake in these conversations. At the conclusion of the presentation, Councillor Coppinger queried whether there was a bonus pay for general practitioners (GPs) for each vaccine that was delivered. It was confirmed that GP's do receive a bonus for vaccines provided. Kevin McDaniel queried how children up to year 6 could gain access to vaccines. It was confirmed that Berkshire Healthcare Trust had a team of nurses who would deliver the vaccines into schools. It was also confirmed that school staff who were eligible under the at-risk groups would be vaccinated. Frontline practitioners would be offered vaccines and that these would be available at antenatal clinics, pharmacies, workplaces and GP surgeries. Councillor Coppinger queried what the cost per vaccine was and it was noted that it was £8-12 for the administration by a practitioner and this included cost of a single vaccine.

A member of the public queried whether there would be a planned or phased vaccine for those aged over 65 as there had been a single manufacturer of the vaccine and whether there would be enough vaccine to cover this eligible group. It was confirmed that there was increased availability and that the flu vaccine was updated each year and was determined by flu found in the southern hemisphere. There would be a phased approach and it had been encouraged for those who had not been able to be vaccinated in the first instance to return when the vaccine was restocked. Teresa Salami Oru queried whether the intended flu coordinators would be available for use over the upcoming flu period. It was confirmed that the Frimley Health Trust had pledged £1.2 million and that this was used to implement flu coordinators for this year.

Health and Wellbeing Board - 16.10.18 THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD, SUB BOARDS

Kevin McDaniel updated Board Members with details of the Developing Well Board. It was highlighted that schools across the Royal Borough had taken on the Daily Mile in different variations and that incorporation of daily exercise through this had been adapted using space and equipment available to the individual schools.

A prevalence of isolation felt by young people when using social media had been looked at as a predominant theme of the sub-group and it was confirmed that a deeper exploration of issues surrounding isolation and exclusion when using social media was being carried out.

Teresa Salami Oru updated the Board on the progress of the Living Well Board. The sub group had been finalising details of the draft plan and this would be ready for December. The Living Well board would now be overseeing the delivery of the legacy plans from the year of mental health. These were now referred to as Public Mental Health Plans and would be embedded into the Living Well plan. Some of the planned initiatives included mandatory mental health awareness training for staff .Work with local businesses and encouraging them to partake in a local workplace health charter would commence from November.. It was noted that mental health impact assessment tools had been developed.

Hilary Hall updated the Board on the progress of the Ageing Well Board. One of the emerging themes of the JSNA had been surrounding the issue of self funders and this was to be looked at in more detail and would form part of the formal work carried out by the sub group.

164/15 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

No questions were received by the public.

165/15 AOB

Kevin McDaniel informed the Board that there had been an Ofsted inspection in July 2017 and as a result there had been a requirement to work closely together and that works would be signed off in 12 months time. It was noted that the Department of Education had expectations that the impact of the targeted actions and recommendations should be in effect before being signed off.

ACTION- That the following items be scheduled to form part of future HWB meeting agendas:

- NHS Planning Guidance (January)
- 10 Year Plan (To be scheduled)
- ICS Operating Plan (To be scheduled)
- Update on Progress of Heatherwood

166/15 FUTURE MEETING DATES

Dates of future meetings were noted as follows:

- 15th January 2019
- 9th April 2019

Health and Wellbeing Board - 16.10.18 The meeting, which began at 3.04 pm, ended at 4.36 pm

CHAIRMAN	 	
DATE	 	